
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, April 23, 2025 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/3RId2T3 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition 
A. School Bus Driver Appreciation DR. TRACI PIERCE 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting April 9, 2025 
 

Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans  

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Ending March 31, 2025 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending March 31, 2025 

 
K-12 Education Items 
A. 2025 - 2026 Athletic User Fees 
B. 2025 - 2026 Middle School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices 
C. 2025 - 2026 High School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices 
D. 2025 - 2026 High School Athletic Admission Prices 

 
Teaching and Learning Reports 
A. Recommendation Instructional Material 
B. Multilingual Education Program 
C. Highly Capable Program Plan 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3RId2T3&data=05%7C02%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7Cf2085b62b4264209b52d08dd78434100%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638798952445162042%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=30pslzWPV3%2FFiJP1SddicHCV8cjp%2BO0garzS%2FqRhV70%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

 
6. Communications Follow-up 

 
7. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
8. Reports and Discussions 

A. Transportation: Annual Bus Purchase Plan  APRIL HEISER 
B. 2025-2026 General Fund Preliminary Budget             DR. TOM BRILLHART 

 
9. Unfinished Business 

None 
 

10. New Business 
A. K-12 Online Learning Materials  ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 
B. Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy Instructional Materials  
C. Artificial Intelligence (AI) Guidance  
  

11. Next Meeting Agenda 
A. K-12 Student Goal Report: All Students are Safe, Known, and Valued 
B. Social Emotional Learning: Expectations and Outcomes  

 
12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building 
April 9, 2025 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Gabe Galbraith, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, Legislative Representative of the Board; Dr. 
Josh Miller, Board Member; Mike Connors, Board Member; Annie Maltos, Student 
Representative to the Board; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the 
Board.  

 
Student Representative-Elect: Diego Anguiano 
 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Dr. Thomas Brillhart, 
Assistant Superintendent of Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of 
Communications and Public Relations; and Eric Veach, Executive Director of 
Information Technology.   

 
Other Guest(s): Paul Brachvogel, District Legal Counsel   
  

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 38 online and in-person staff and guests. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Annette Rose thanked the Board for taking a stand on Title IX and being fiscally 

responsible and commented on PE credit for students playing sports. 
 
 Hayley Hoyt thanked the Board for standing up for girls.  
 
 Tina Gregory thanked the Board for standing up for girls and supporting that boys are not 

allowed in girls' sports, locker rooms, and bathrooms. 
 
 Adreana Amya thanked the Board for standing up for girls in women's sports. 
 
 JoJo Davis presented Diego Anguiano with a certificate thanking him for coming to 

Highlands Middle School to encourage students and for being selected as the Student 
Representative-elect. 

 
 J. Polcha thanked the Board for writing the letter regarding boys playing girls' sports. 
 
 Lisa Peppard commented on transgender athletes and encouraged the Board to focus on 

things like funding. 
 



Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 
 Lawanda Hatch commented on equity; equal rights; diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI); 

and Title IX. 
 
 Marissa Dunfee supported the Board's recent Title IX complaint against the Washington 

State Superintendent, Chris Reykdal.  
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Dr. Josh Miller to approve the consent items as presented. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 26, 2025 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Budget Status Report Ending February 28, 2025 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 28, 2025 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW-UP 
 

 President Galbraith updated the Board on their complaint, stating that the letter had made its 
way to the White House. He shared that the last update he heard was that the Department of 
Education is reviewing the request for an investigation and will let the White House know of 
its decision in the next few days. 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Student Representative to the Board Annie Maltos reported attending the Superintendent 

Student Advisory Council today and meeting with Dr. Pierce and Diego Anguiano to 
discuss how to promote the Student Representative and Student Representative Elect 
positions. 

 
 Student Representative-elect to the Board, Diego Anguiano, shared that he visited 

Highlands Middle School and attended a breakfast with the Migrant Graduation Specialist. 
 
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill reported attending the Migrant Parent Advisory Council 

and the Council of Governments and visiting ECEAP. She provided a legislative update to 
the Board before being excused to leave the meeting at 6:02 p.m.  

 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce shared that she visited ECEAP and Hawthorne. She gave an 

update on the Academic Excellence Awards Banquet and asked the Board to sign up for 



Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 3 
 
 

which graduations they will attend. 
  
 Board Member Mike Connors reported that two of the Career and Technical Education 

(CTE) bills passed out of the Senate today and will hopefully be signed by the Governor.  
 
 Board Member Dr. Josh Miller shared that he met with Representative Dan Newhouse and 

discussed some of the needs and concerns in the Kennewick School District, like the Title 
IX complaint. He also discussed celebrating students, parents, and staff at the Academic 
Excellence Awards Banquet. 

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending high school sporting events and eating 

school lunch with Dr. Brillhart at a few schools. He shared that he went on several podcasts 
and news sources with President Galbraith, talking about Title IX and standing up for girls' 
sports. He closed by sharing an email from a community member regarding boys' and girls' 
sports. 

 
 President Gabe Galbraith reported doing lots of interviews. He stated that he appreciated all 

that Dr. Brillhart and the staff are doing on the district budget. He listened to Chris 
Reykdal's webinar this week and commented on Title IX and the importance of our school 
district prioritizing real boundaries, real biology, and real protection for our students. 

 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Annual Human Resources Report  
  

Dr. Tom Brillhart, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, presented the annual human 
resources report. He shared current staff statistics; recruiting, hiring, and retention efforts; 
annual staff survey data; staff recognition efforts; and professional growth and evaluation 
systems. He also discussed a new formula for calculating staff and retention rates.     

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 None 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 None 
  
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. Study Session 
1. Preliminary Levy Planning 

 
B. Business Meeting 

1. Preliminary Budget 2025-26 



Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 4 
 
 

2. Online Learning Platform/Materials Recommendation 
3. Artificial Intelligence Guidance 
4. Digital Citizenship Learning Materials 
5. Transportation – Annual Bus Purchase Plan 

  
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith announced an end to the business portion of the meeting at 7:08 

p.m. He moved the Board into executive session at 7:10 p.m. per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) to 
discuss a legal issue for approximately 30 minutes. Mr. Galbraith noted that no further 
formal action would be taken. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 Mr. Galbraith reconvened the regular session of the Board at 7:40 p.m. There being no 

further business, the Board adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved: April 23, 2025 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Joel Ledesma Park MS Asst. Principal Kelly move 1.0
Contingent on 

Cert
Maren Benedict KeHS Asst. Principal Wood retirement 1.0 7/1/2025

Sydney Blackman Special Services Speech Language Pathologist Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 4/28 - 

5/27/25

Leslie Bravo Reisch Westgate Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0
11/26/25-

1/4/26

Shelby Kinner Westgate Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0
1/9/26-
2/17/26

Tiara Cox Special Services Speech Language Pathologist Requesting LOA 1.0 to .8 2025-26

Natalie Lahti Amistad Asst. Principal 1.0 6/30/2025

Daniel Sonderland DHMS Teacher - MS Spec. Srvcs. 1.0 8/22/2025

Kaycee Ferguson
Chinook to Teaching 
& Learning

MS Teacher to Sec. 
Humanities Specialist Program Need 1.0 2025-26

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE: Wednesday, April 23, 2025

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

4/23/2025 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Rosa Valenzuela Amistad Para/SS/Resource Room Program Need 6 4/15/2025

Mathew Grimsley Transportation Bus Driver 5.0 3/27/2025

Jason Ruegsegger Transportation Bus Attendant 3.58 4/7/2025

Alexandrea Wilson Business Office ASB Receipting Secretary Replaces Brandy Scott 8.0 4/16/2025

Ashley Hendrix Southgate Para/FP/LAP/BE
Repalces Alycia 

Silverthorn
6.25 4/14/2025

Alekzander Aguayo Highlands Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Michelle White 6.0 4/21/2025

Kerrie Flannery Amistad Cook Replaces Andrea Salgado 6.0 4/21/2025

Yasmin Marquez 

Chavez
Vista Cook Replaces Christina Hill 6.0 4/22/2025

Dennis Stuart Amistad Para/SS/LifeSkills Replaces Reyna Gonzalez 6.50 4/8/2025

Rosa Patino Garduno Transportation Bus Attendant 4.58 4/7/2025

Richard Nordness Transportation Bus Driver 4.17 4/8/2025

William Thompson Tri-Tech Assistant Instructor To teach 8.0 8/20/2025

Jose Barreras Vista Para/SS/Tier II Behavior 6.0 4/21/2025

Cynthia Taylor Sage Crest Cook 3.0 4/11/2025

Melanie Clifford Transportation Bus Driver 4.75 5/2/2025

Rhapsodi Escobar Amon Creek Para/SS/Tier II Autism 6.0 4/11/2025

Carter Evans Chinook Para/FP/LAP Until 5/5/2025 6.0 4/7/2025

Jordan McClellan 

Moreno
Lincoln Para/SS/Tier III Autism

From medical LOA; until 

8/27/2025
6.5 4/11/2025

Christina Hill Vista Cook Up to one year 6.0 3/31/2025

Lissete Guzman Garcia N/A Para To sub teach N/A 4/18/2025

Cindy Schwartz Ridge View Para/FP/BE/LAP 5.50 7/31/2025

Carol Fanin Facilities Services Facilities Services Secretary 8.0 8/31/2025

Shannon Lien KDC Para/SS/Preschool 5.0 8/20/2025

Rebecca Garcia Kennewick Attendance Secretary 8.0 8/20/2025

NEW POSITIONS

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: April 23, 2025

REPLACEMENT

REHIRE

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RESIGNATION

RETIREMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

4/23/2025 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Department New Assignment Old Assignment Date

CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENT
Name

TERMINATION

RETURN FROM LOA

4/23/2025 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   Wednesday, April 23, 2025 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Kylie Thorne Kamiakin HS Assist Volleyball Replaces Sydney Freitag - Resigned  

2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2024-2025 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

      2024-2025 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Arnel Brdarevic SOUTHRIDIGE HS Assist Boys Soccer Resigned 2025-26 Sc Yr 

     2025-26 Sc Yr 
     2025-26 Sc Yr 
     2025-26 Sc Yr 
     2025-26 Sc Yr 

 





































 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Rhonda Pratt, Director of Secondary Education 

RE: Athletic User Fees Middle School and High School 2025 - 2026 

 

Per Board policy a 3520, Student Fees, Fines, and Charges, the Board delegates 
authority to the superintendent or designee to establish appropriate fees and 
procedures governing the collection of such fees and to make annual reports to the 
Board regarding fee schedules. The Athletic User Fees were established at the 
high school level in 1985 at $25.00 per season and at the middle school in 1992 at 
$15.00 per season. Fees were increased for the 2005-2006 and the 2009-2010 
school years. Fees are waived or reduced for students whose families, by reason 
of low income, would have difficulty paying the full fee. 
 
Recommended fees for the 2025-26 school year remain the same as current fees; 
there is no recommended increase.  
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommendation:  

 
The Board approves the Athletic User Fees for the 2025-2026 school year as presented.  
 
 

MIDDLE SCHOOL 2025 - 2026 
Student Fee per Sport (Season) $30.00 

A student qualifying for free/reduced $0.00 
HIGH SCHOOL 2025 – 2026 

Student Fee per Sport (Season) $40.00 
A student qualifying for free/reduced $0.00 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Rhonda Pratt, Director of Secondary Education 

RE: Middle School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices  2025 - 2026 

 

Per Board policy a 3520, Student Fees, Fines, and Charges, the Board delegates 
authority to the superintendent or designee to establish appropriate fees and 
procedures governing the collection of such fees and to make annual reports to the 
Board regarding fee schedules. Fees are waived or reduced for students whose 
families, by reason of low income, would have difficulty paying the full fee. 
 
Recommended middle school ASB and yearbook fees for the 2025-26 school year 
remain the same as current fees; there is no recommended increase.  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommendation:  

The Board approves the middle school Associated Student Body Fees and Yearbook 
prices for the 2025-2026 school year as presented. (*additional charges may be 
applied for yearbook prices if ordered after the cut-off date). 

ALL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2025 - 2026 

ASB Card $15.00 
ASB Card qualifying for free & reduced students $0.00 
Yearbook $30.00* 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Ronda Pratt, Director of Secondary Education 

RE: High School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices 2025 - 2026 

 
Per Board policy 3520, Student Fees, Fines, and Charges, the Board delegates 
authority to the superintendent or designee to establish appropriate fees and 
procedures governing the collection of such fees and to make annual reports to the 
Board regarding fee schedules. Fees are waived or reduced for students whose 
families, by reason of low income, would have difficulty paying the full fee. 
 
Recommended high school ASB and yearbook fees for the 2025-26 school year 
remain the same as current fees, with the exception of yearbook fees at the three 
comprehensive high schools. Recommended yearbook fees have increased by 
$5.00 due to production costs.  
 
 

KAMIAKIN, KENNEWICK AND 

SOUTHRIDGE  HIGH SCHOOLS 
2020-2021 2021-2022 2022 - 2023 2023 - 2024 2025-2026 

ASB Card (1st & 2nd Semester) $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 $35.00 
ASB Card (1st & 2nd Semester) 
Qualifying for Free & Reduced $12.00/$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Yearbook $55.00 $55.00 $60.00 $60.00 $65.00* 
 
 

LEGACY HIGH SCHOOL 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2025-2026 

Yearbook $15.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00 $25.00* 
 

MID-COLUMBIA PARTNERSHIP   2022-2023 2023-2024 2025-2026 

      
Yearbook   $20.00 $25.00 $25.00* 

 
 

Recommendation:  
The Board approves the Associated Student Body fees and Yearbook prices for high 
schools for the 2025-2026 school year as presented. (*additional charges may be 
applied for yearbook prices if ordered after the cut-off date.) 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 
To:  Board of Directors 
Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  
From:  Ronda Pratt, Director of Secondary Education 
RE: High School Athletic Admission Prices 2025 - 2026 

 
Per Board policy a 3520, Student Fees, Fines, and Charges, the Board delegates authority 
to the superintendent or designee to establish appropriate fees and procedures governing 
the collection of such fees and to make annual reports to the Board regarding fee 
schedules. Fees are waived or reduced for students whose families, by reason of low 
income, would have difficulty paying the full fee. 
 
Recommended fees for the 2025-26 school year remain the same as current fees; there is 
no recommended increase.  
 

KAMIAKIN, KENNEWICK AND SOUTHRIDGE HIGH SCHOOLS 
  

ALL SPORTS 
2025-2026 

ADULTS $5.00 
SENIOR CITIZENS (AGE 60) $3.00 

STUDENTS WITH ASB (HOME) FREE 

K-12 STUDENTS WITHOUT HOME ASB OR AWAY $3.00 
K-12 STUDENTS QUALIFYING FOR FREE & REDUCED FREE 

PRESCHOOL ACCOMPANIED BY ADULT FREE 

 
SPECIAL SEASO N PRICES 2025-2026 

Kamiakin High School 
Brave Card $50.00 

Senior Citizen (Age 60) & Student Gold Card $25.00 
Kennewick High School  

Pride Card (All Sports Pass) $50.00 
Southridge High School 

Suns Card $50.00 
All Sports Pass & Senior Citizens (Age 60) (Pre-

High School – All Home Games) 
$25.00 

 
 

Recommendation:  

The Board approves the athletic admission and special season prices as presented.  





 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

TITLE AUTHOR PUBLISHER FORMAT DATE 
PUBLISHED 

GRADE 
LEVEL 

DESCRIPTION ACTION BY IMC 

Alfreds Basic 
Adult Piano 

Course 

W. Palmer, 
M. Manus & 

A. Lethco 

Alfred Music Book 06/01/11 9-12th grade Supplemental 
Material 

RECOMMENDED 

Sound 
Innovation 

Sound 
Development 

B. Phillips & 
K. Moss 

Alfred Music  Book & 
Digital 

01/01/2012 9-12th grade Supplemental 
Material 

RECOMMENDED 

Sound 
Innovations 
Ensemble 

Development 

P. Boonshaft 
& 

 C. Bernotas 

Alfred Music Book & 
Digital 

01/01/2012 9-12th grade Supplemental 
Material 

RECOMMENDED 

Essentials For 
Strings 

G. Anderson Neil a Kjos 
Music Co.  

Book 09/23/1958 9-12th grade Supplemental 
Material 

RECOMMENDED 

Foundations 
For Superior 
Performance 

J. King & R. 
Williams 

Neil a Kjos 
Music Co.  

Book 02/11/1998 9-12th grade Supplemental 
Material 

RECOMMENDED 

 

April 23, 2025 – Board Meeting 

INSTRUCTIONAL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  April, 23, 2025  

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Sarah Del Toro, Director Learning Supports & Programs 

RE: Multilingual Education Program 

Per Title III grant assurances, formal Board approval is required for the Multilingual 
Education Program on a yearly basis. This year, our district has 3685 Multilingual 
Learners across all schools. We offer three language development programs: Dual 
Language, Supportive Mainstream, and Content-Based ESL. Dual language is K-8 and 
provides instruction in English and Spanish. Supportive Mainstream is K-12 and 
provides supports for language learners in all contents through high-leverage language 
development strategies. Content-Based ESL is 6-12 and provides content-based 
language development to newcomers in secondary who have had limited access to 
schooling. The following shares where each program is provided. Please note that 
these services are paid for out of a combination of Title I, LAP, Bilingual, and Basic 
Education.  
 

• Dual Language: 
o Amistad 
o Eastgate 
o Fuerza 
o Highlands  
o Park 

• Supportive Mainstream: 
o All buildings except for Eastgate and Fuerza (due to dual language school-

wide) 
• Content-Based ESL: 

o Highlands 
o Park 
o Kamiakin 
o Kennewick High 

 

This year, our district received $831,000, including carryover, for Title III. Title III is 
primarily used for professional learning centered on language development.  



 
Attached: Title III grant application; Program Evaluation, Improvements, and 
Professional Learning Page 

 

Recommendation:  

 
The Board approves the Multilingual Education Program for the 2025-2026 school year 
as presented.  
 



Form Name
FP 232 - Title IIIA - Program Evaluation, Improvements, and Professional Learning

(/a1k8y000000Ig0BAAS?isdtp=vw)Back

FP 232 - Title IIIA - Program Evaluation, Improvements, and Professional Learning



Is Form Validated?

Yes
Last Modified By

Alyssa Ibañez (/apex/myProfileView?
id=0058y000001CPUV)

LastModifiedDate

02/24/2025 8:53 AM

 Organization and Application Information

Organization Name

Kennewick School District
Application ID

AP-OSPI-4667

Application Title

ESEA Consolidated Grant Application (24-25)
Last Submitted On

09/25/2024 4:33 PM

 Program Evaluation

How will Title III funds be used to support the district's plans for improving services and outcomes for
multilingual English learners this year?  Please refer to the Program Evaluation and Improvement Plan
outlined in this year's TBIP application (FP 219) 

We will continue GLAD based PD for all content and language development teachers. In the summer we
will hold a 4 day workshop where teachers will create content and language integrated units aligned with
WIDA standards. In addition, in-building ML specialists or language development instructional coaches
will support LD with all teachers in all contents. Units with language expectations and objectives. New
instructional materials and course projections for secondary newcomers with SLIFE profile. The newly
hired Native American Education Liaison will support family engagement and student belonging in
school through case management, home visits, and tribal collaboration.

 Districts with one or more buildings identified under WSIF

Districts with schools identified under WSIF should ensure that school improvement plans include goals and
high leverage activities that address needs of multilingual English learners.
 
1. Number of buildings identified under WSIF
10

2. If district has buildings identified, state goal(s) relevant to improving EL services and outcomes from each
building's school improvement plan(s). OSPI Home (https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-

resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www k12 wa us/ospi-site-information) |

4/17/25, 7:46 AM Grants: FP 232- Title III, Part A - Student Counts View ~ Grants Portal

https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/DynamicFormView?formTypes=&formId=a1n8y000000WzDdAAK&id=a2ucs000000AMVVAA4&templateName=FP… 1/4

https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/a1k8y000000Ig0BAAS?isdtp=vw
https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/myProfileView?id=0058y000001CPUV
https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/myProfileView?id=0058y000001CPUV
https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/myProfileView?id=0058y000001CPUV
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information


All of our WISF identified buildings have a language development instructional coach or ML specialist
who works with teachers to incorporate language expectations (WIDA) within content areas. They also
align intentional language development strategies to those language objectives and support teachers in
their creation and implementation. Our goal is that students become proficient within 6 years in program.

3. Describe how each building is measuring progress toward the goal(s). 

We use OPSI methodology for determining if students are making yearly language development
progress as measured on the WIDA ACCESS. Each student has a goal for the amount of growth they
need to make.

4. What high leverage activities are being taken to achieve the stated goal(s)?
 

Placement with teachers with EL expertise
Co-teaching
Co-planning between EL specialists and gen ed/content teachers using WIDA ELD Standards Framework
Push-in Support
Coordinated LAP supports

Bilingual/abridged materials in content areas
Use of instructional strategies such as GLAD, SIOP, AVID Excel, or UDL
Curriculum mapping aligned to WIDA ELD Standards Framework
Extended day/extended year programs
Ongoing professional learning on differentiation of content for multilingual English learners
Other
Use of formative assessment to monitor and address language development within units of instruction

If other, describe the high leverage activities being taken to improve outcomes for MLs within the
building(s).
 

 Title III Budget Activity Details 

Use of Title III Funds: Title III section 3115, requires that available funds be used "to supplement the level of
Federal, State, and local public funds and in no case to supplant such Federal, State, and local public funds".
In this section, "supplement" means "an addition" and "supplant" means "to take the place of."

Summary of allowable activities:

21 - Supervision
Limited to <2% of allocation including administrative cap.

24 - Guidance and Counseling
Supplemental family engagement activities such as supplies for meetings (no food allowable),
translation/interpretation for events directly related to English language development program.
Salaries and/or extra hours for EL Advocate (here or activity code 27)

27 - Teaching
Salaries for certificated and classified for extended day or extended year EL instruction only.
Supplies for allowable activities (e.g., extended day/year), instructional materials and related
contracts.
Extra hours for staff for family engagement activities

resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information) |
Non Disclosure Agreement (https://ospi-egms--

c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA) | Conflict of Interest (https://ospi-egms--
c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI)

OSPI Home (https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-
resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www k12 wa us/ospi-site-information) |

4/17/25, 7:46 AM Grants: FP 232- Title III, Part A - Student Counts View ~ Grants Portal

https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/DynamicFormView?formTypes=&formId=a1n8y000000WzDdAAK&id=a2ucs000000AMVVAA4&templateName=FP… 2/4

https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information


Extra hours for staff for family engagement activities
Salaries and/or extra hours for EL Advocates (here or activity code 24)
Administrative costs for language assessments (screener/annual) for private school students

31 - Instructional Professional Development (Required activity)
Salaries for certificated coaches/PD specialists for EL/AI/AN
Substitute costs for staff attending PD (must be specific to EL/AI/AN)
Stipends for extra hours for PD (must be specific to EL/AI/AN) for certificated/classified staff.
Tuition support for professional learning including support to obtain EL/BE endorsement.

32 - Instructional Technology
Instructional technology (software and/or hardware) that is specific to ELD (hardware may ONLY be
used for the ELD program for this to be allowable)
Instructional technology support for families in acquiring English.

33 - Curriculum
Curriculum development (e.g., co-planning, crosswalk work among content and WIDA standards)
Curricular resources specific to ELD or to support meaningful access to content.    

Budget details

Directions:
This table prepopulates with data from the budget tab. Select the + sign on the left-hand side to expand the 
budget. Select the edit icon (pencil) to add written descriptions for each activity/object code with budgeted 
funds. Use clear, specific wording with sufficient details to determine allowability.

* Records are sorted by Last Modified Date ascending order

 BP01 07/01/2024 08/31/2025

 Required Professional Learning Plan (Under ESSA, districts are required to allocate
Title III funding for professional learning activities). 

Professional learning plans must provide learning opportunities that are both research-based and
specifically designed for multilingual English/AI/AN learners. Plans should enhance educators’ capacity to
use curricular resources, assessments, and/or instructional strategies to improve outcomes for multilingual
English/AI/AN learners and be of sufficient intensity and duration to have a positive and lasting impact on
teachers’ performance in the classroom.
 
1.  Include a summary of the professional development plan that is specific to language acquisition 

This year we will continue our support of ELD/dual language instructional coaches and ML specialists as
they work to support the teachers serving language learners in their buildings with co-planning and co-
teaching. We also plan to intentionally partner with content specialists at the district level to ensure all
content PD includes research-based language development strategies that support the instruction.
Finally, we are implementing Inclusionary Practices Model Teacher Cohort to expand understanding of
UDL throughout the district.

2. Describe how implementation of Professional Learning will be monitored.
 

End DateStart DateSupport Year

resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information) |
Non Disclosure Agreement (https://ospi-egms--

c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA) | Conflict of Interest (https://ospi-egms--
c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI)

OSPI Home (https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-
resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www k12 wa us/ospi-site-information) |

4/17/25, 7:46 AM Grants: FP 232- Title III, Part A - Student Counts View ~ Grants Portal

https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/DynamicFormView?formTypes=&formId=a1n8y000000WzDdAAK&id=a2ucs000000AMVVAA4&templateName=FP… 3/4

https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information


Classroom walk throughs
Follow up coaching
Self-reporting of strategy use
Student feedback on use of strategies

Observation of team meetings/ PLCs
Other

If other, provide details.
 

Form Number FP232 Form Version FY24 Back

resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information) |
Non Disclosure Agreement (https://ospi-egms--

c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA) | Conflict of Interest (https://ospi-egms--
c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI)

OSPI Home (https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-
resources-guides) | Site Info (https://www k12 wa us/ospi-site-information) |

4/17/25, 7:46 AM Grants: FP 232- Title III, Part A - Student Counts View ~ Grants Portal

https://ospi-egms.my.site.com/apex/DynamicFormView?formTypes=&formId=a1n8y000000WzDdAAK&id=a2ucs000000AMVVAA4&templateName=FP… 4/4

https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticNDA
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi-egms--c.vf.force.com/apex/OSPIStaticCOI
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://ospi.k12.wa.us/policy-funding/grants-management/egms-resources-guides
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information
https://www.k12.wa.us/ospi-site-information


 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  April 23, 2025 

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Brittany Mercer, Assistant Director Learning Supports & Programs 

RE: Highly Capable District Plan 

 

Attached is the 2024-2025 Highly Capable District Plan. Board approval is required 
according to the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) highly capable 
guidelines. 
 
A screening must take place on or before 2nd grade and also on or before 6th grade. 
This year, a universal screener (CogAT) was administered to all 1st and 2nd grade 
students. In future years, only 1st grade students will take the CogAT. In addition to 
looking at the CogAT for 1st and 2nd grade students, the multidisciplinary team also 
looked at Star assessment reading and math scores. Fifth grade students are not given 
the CogAT; however other multiple assessment measures including Star assessment   
reading and math scores, Smarter Balanced Assessment (SBA) scores, and WIDA. 
scores were examined.  
 
Students who are identified as benefiting from highly capable services are served in 
elementary at either cluster classroom at home elementary school or in the KOG 
program (full-time self-contained highly capable classroom) at Vista Elementary. Middle 
and high school students are served through honors, AP, IB classes or other college-
level courses such as College in the High School and Running Start.  

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Recommendation:  
 
The Board approves the 2024-2025 Highly Capable District Plan as presented.   



Kathy Kern : 

From: Smartsheet Forms <forms@app.smartsheet.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 2:03 PM 

To: Kathy Kern 

Subject: Confirmation - Form 1 | 2024-25 Highly Capable District Plan (Introduction Form 1/4) 

You don't often get email from forms@app.smartsheet.com. Learn why this is important | 

Thank you for submitting your entry. A copy is included below for your records. 

Form 1 | 2024425 Highly Capable District Plan (Introduction Form 1/ 

Local Education 

Agency (LEA) Kennewick School District 3017 

Name 

First and Last 

Name, Position Kathy Kern, K-12 Highly Capable Specialist 

Title 

Email Address kathy.kern@ksd.org 

| Universal 
screening must 
occur once in or 

before second 

grade, and once 

in or before sixth 

grade. 

Ensure that all 

students across 

all district 

educational 

settings at the 

identified grade



levels are 

included in 

screenings. 

Every student 

must be screened 

using at least two 

student data 

points. 

Data sources do 

not have to be the 

same for every 

student. 

Review student 

IEP and 504 plans 

for supportive 

data and follow 

accommodations. 

Review data for 

Multilingual 

students for rapid 

language 

acquisition and 

use nonverbal 

assessments if 

native language 

assessments are 

not available. 

Districts must 

prioritize 

equitable 

identification of 

low income 

students. 

Universal 

screening is not 

used to exit 

students from 

placement for 

services. 

Powered by Smartsheet Forms 

© 2024 Smartsheet Inc. | Contact | Privacy Policy | User Agreement | Report Abuse/Spam 



Kathy Kern 

From: Smartsheet Forms <forms@app.smartsheet.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 2:14 PM 

To: Kathy Kern 

Subject: Confirmation - Form 2 | 2024-25 Highly Capable District Plan (Screening Procedures 

Form 2/4) 

You don't often get email from forms@app.smartsheet.com. Learn why this is important 

Thank you for submitting your entry. A copy is included below for your records. 

Form 2 | 2024425 Highly Capable District Plan (Screening Proceduri 

Local Education 

Agency (LEA) Kennewick School District 3017 

Name 

First and Last 

Name, Position Kathy Kern, K-12 Highly Capable Specialist 

| Title 

Email Address kathy 

Universal 
Screening Grade 1, 2 

| Level K-2 

Universal 

Screening Grade 5 

Level 3-6 

State Standard- 

Based 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

Assessments



Classroom- 

Based 

Assessments 

lowa 

Assessments 

(Form E) 

Logramos 

(Spanish) 

Kaufman Test of 

Educational 

Achievement, 

3rd Edition 

(KTEA-3) 

Test of Early 

Mathematics 

Ability (TEMA-3) 

Test of Early 

Reading Ability 

(TERA-3) 

Test of Early 

Written 

Language (TEWL- 

3) 

Other Academic 

Achievement 

Screening 

Procedure 

CogAt 7 or 8 

Screening Form 

CogAt 7 or 8 Full 

Battery 

Naglieri 

Nonverbal 

Aptitude Test 

(NNAT 2 or 3) 

Naglieri General 

Ability Test 

(Verbal, 

Nonverbal, 

Quantitative) 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A



Stanford Binet 

Intelligence 

Scales (SB5) 

Stanford Binet 

Intelligence 

Scales for Early 

Childhood (Early 

SB5) 

Wechsler 

Preschool 

Primary Scale of 

Intelligence 

(WPPSI IV) 

Wechsler 

Intelligence 

Scale for 

Children (WISC 

Vv) 

Woodcock- 

Johnson Tests of 

Cognitive 

Abilities (WJ IV 

Cog) 

Other Cognitive 

Screening 

Procedure 

Torrance Test of 

Creative 

Thinking 

Other Creativity 

Screening 

Procedure 

WA Kindergarten 

Inventory of 

Developing 

Skills (WaKIDS) 

Gifted 

Evaluation 

Scale, 3rd 

Edition (GES-3) 

Gifted Rating 

Scale (GRS) 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A



Scales for 

Identifying 

Gifted Students 

(SIGS-2) 

N/A 

Universal 

Talented and 

Gifted Screener 

(UTAGS) 

HOPE Teacher 

Rating Scale 

N/A 

N/A 

Kingore 

Observation 

Inventory, 2nd 

Edition (KOI) 

N/A 

Scales for Rating 

the Behavior 

Characteristics 

of Superior N/A 

Students 

(Renzulli- 

Hartman) 

TAB (Traits, 

Aptitude, 

Behavior) MM 

Frasier 

USTARS -PLUS 

Teacher 

Observationof N/A 

Potential in 

Students (TOPS) 

N/A 

Other Supportive 

Norm- 

Referenced 

Scales and Non- MUA 

Standard 

Resources 

WIDA (Language 

Proficiency K-12 

Assessment) 

Mastery-based 

Proficiency N/A 

Screener in



Primary 

Language 

Individual 

Educational Plan K, 1, 2, 3, 4,5, 6, 7,8 

(IEP) 

ADA Section 504 

(accommodation 

plan for 

disability) 

K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 

Powered by Smartsheet Forms 
© 2024 Smartsheet Inc. | Contact | Privacy Policy | User Agreement | Report Abuse/Spam 



- 
7 

- 
a
 

_ 
7 

a
 

ra 
a
 

7
)
 

>
 

- 
- 

7 
7 

Oo 
- 

- 
a
 

- 
- 

n
e
 

_
 

_
 

_
 

a
 

Oo 
B
n
 

7 
Oo 

_ 
: 

- 
oe 
n
e
 

r
i
e
 

oe 
a
e
 

a
 

_
 

B
S
 

3 
8 

: 
a
 

= 
Oo 

e
e
 

_
 

O
S
 

4
 

a
 

a
 

_ 
>
>
 

7 
7 

O
o
 

- 
7 

_ 
~
 

7 
4
 

Oo 
a
 

i 
- 

7 
7 

Oo 
7 

7 
7 

_ 
7 

a
 

- 
: 

a
 
S
S
 

a 
- 

E 
7 

7 
a
 

4_ 
- 

7 
o
e
 

7 
: 

7 
7 

7 
7 

7 
7 

7 
7 

: 
7 

7 
oe 

a
 

7 
4
 

- 
- 

7 
7 

- 

7 
- 

a
 

_
 

7 
a
 

o
s
 

- 
- 

- 
7 

e
e
 

_ 
a 

- 
- 

a
 

_
 

e
e
 

: 
- 

: 
4 

a
 

a
 

a
 

B
S
 

-_ 
7 

7 
>
 

7 
a
 

7 
-_ 

7 
-_ 

_ 
i 

o
e
 

a 
_ 

a 
r
r
 

rn 
o
t
 

a
e
 

i 

7 
] 

- 
a
 

n
l
 

a
 

7 
- 

- 
: 

7 
7 

7 
- 

7 
- 

- 
_
 

_ 
_ 

_ 
- 

: 
: 

7 
_
 

7 
7 

_
 

7 
OS 

: 
: 

e
e
 

- 
7 

~~ 
7 

~~ 
7 

~~ 
7 

~~ 
~~ 

4
.
 
a
 

- 
~~ 
e
e
 

~~ 
7 

-
 

7 
7 

7 
7 

7 
7 

- 
7 

o
e
 

_
 

- 
Oo 

O
O
 

_
 

- 
- 

- 
e
e
 

Oo 
a
 

_
 

S
o
 

oO 
a
 

a
 

7
 

7 
- 

a
 

: 
- 

a
a
a
 

- 
_
 

a
 

: 
a
 

a 
pe 
e
e
 

e
e
 
r
e
 

>
 

o
e
 

7 
a 

a
e
 

a 
4
 

_
 

_
 

o
e
 

O
o
 

: 
f
o
 

_
 

ae 
_
 

4_ 
n
i
 

a
 
B
n
 

- 

: 
_ 

ee 
; 

7 
a
 

a
 

7 
7 

- 
: 

; 
- 

1
 

: 
: 

: 
: 

- 
a
 

7
 
4
t
 

=
 
e
e
 

- 
_
 

: 
7 

7 
a
 

7 
7 

B
S
 

a
 

7 
: 

: 
. 

- 
a 

a 

a
 
a
 

a
 

_
 
a
 

e
o
 

a
 

_
 

: 
a
 

a
 

_
 
_
 
e
e
 

- 
- 

oo 
a 

a
 

- 
- 

7 
7 

- 
7 

: 
a
 

i 
4
4
 

a
 

- 
_
 

7
 
a
 

a
 
e
e
 

4_ 
a
n
e
 

: 
_
,
 

7 
a
 

- 
- 

o
e
 

a
 

a 
a
 

7 
- 

7 
7 

_ 
a
 

i 
a
 

a
 

7 
o
e
 

7 
a 

_
 

a
 

- 
a 

o
e
 

: 
7 

B
n
 

7 
a
 

7 

>
 

7 
7 

- 
=
 

7 
o
e
 

- 
: 

7 
7 

-_ 
>
 

7 

oy 
_
 

OO 
7 

7 
7 

a
 

7 
o
e
 

7 
: 

7 
- 

7 
7



Kathy Kern 

From: Smartsheet Forms <forms@app.smartsheet.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 2:28 PM 

To: Kathy Kern 

Subject: Confirmation - Form 3 | 2024-25 Highly Capable District Plan (Identification Measures 

Form 3/4) 

| You don't often get email from forms@app.smartsheet.com. Learn why this is important 
} ca 

Thank you for submitting your entry. A copy is included below for your records. 

Form 3 | 2024-25 Highly Capable District Plan (Identification Measu 

| Local 

| Education 
Agency (LEA) 

Name 

Kennewick School District 3017 

First and Last 

| Name, Position Kathy Kern, K-12 Highly Capable Specialist 

Title 

EmailAddress_ kathy.kern@ksd.org 

State 

Assessment(s) 

MAP for 

Primary Grades N/A 

(MPG) 

3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10 

Measures of 

Academic N/A 

Progress (MAP)



lowa Test of 

Basic Skills 

(ITBS) 

lowa Test of 

Education 

Development 

(ITED) 

Stanford 

Achievement 

Test Series, 

10th Edition 

(SAT10) 

Woodcock- 

Johnson IV 

(WJIV) 

Kaufman Test 

of Educational 

Achievement 

(KTEA) 

Other 

Academic 

Achievement 

Identification 

Measure 

CogAt 7 or 8 

Screening 

Form 

CogAt 7 or 8 

Full Battery 

Naglieri 

Nonverbal 

Aptitude Test 

(NNAT2) 

Stanford Binet 

Intelligence 

Scales (SB5) 

Stanford Binet 

Intelligence 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Scales for Early N/A 

Childhood 

(Early SB5)



Wechsler 

Intelligence 

Scale for 

Children, 4th 

Edition (WISC 

IV) 

Woodcock- 

Johnson lV (WJ N/A 

IV) 

N/A 

Otis-Lennon 

School Ability 

Test, 8th N/A 

Edition (OLSAT 

8) 

Other 

Cognitive 

Identification 

Measure 

N/A 

Torrance Test 

of Creative N/A 

Thinking 

Other 

Creativity 

Identification 

Measure 

Gifted Rating 

Scales, 2003 N/A 

(GRS) 

N/A 

Scales for 

Rating the 

Behavioral 

Characteristics 

of Superior 

Students 

(Renzulli 

Scales) 

N/A 

Scales for 

Identifying 

Gifted N/A 

Students, 2004 

(SIGS) 

Washington 

Kindergarten



Inventory of 

Developing 

Skills (WaKIDS) 

Other 

Research- 

based N/A 

Identification 

Measure 

Kingore 

Observation N/A 

Inventory 

Teacher Rating 

Scale (locally N/A 

developed) 

Parent Rating 

Scale (locally N/A 

developed) 

Report Card N/A 

Portfolio - 

Work Samples NIA 

Other Informal 

Identification N/A 

Measures 

Powered by Smartsheet Forms 

© 2024 Smarisheet Inc. | Contact | Privacy Policy | User Agreement | Report Abuse/Spam



Kathy Kern 
Sa NN See Ny 

From: Smartsheet Forms <forms@app.smartsheet.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 2:35 PM 

To: Kathy Kern 

Subject: Confirmation - Form 4 | 2024-25 Highly Capable District Plan (Variety and Continuum of 

Program Services Form 4/4) 

l 
You 

don't 
often 

get 
email 

from 
forms@app.smartsheet.com. 

Learn 

why 
this 

is important 
' 

Thank you for submitting your entry. A copy is included below for your records. 

| Form 4 | 2024425 Highly Capable District Plan (Variety and Continuu 

| Local Education 

Agency (LEA) Kennewick School District 3017 

Name 

First and Last 

Name, Position Kathy Kern, K-12 Highly Capable Specialist 

Title 

Email Address kathy.kern@ksd.org 

Is Gifted Value 32 

applicable? 

Gifted Value 32 - 

Classroom-Based 

Services and 

Programs 

Is Gifted Value 33 

' applicable? 

Gifted Value 33 - 

Unique HCP 

Yes 

3,4,5 

Yes 

Self-Contained Classroom



Services and 

Programs 

Self-Contained 3, 4,5 

Classroom 

Is Gifted Value 34 Vela 

applicable? 

Gifted Value 34 - 

Acceleration Academic Acceleration for HS Students, Advanced Placement, College in the High Sct 

Services and Advancement, Honors/Advanced, International Baccalaureate, Running Start, Subject 

Programs 

Academic 

Acceleration for 

High School ate 

Students 

Advanced 

Placement (AP) Sa jit Ee 

College in the 

High School 4,12 

Concurrent or 

Dual Enrollment Sy 10,71 14 

Credit by 9,10, 11,12 

Examination 

Grade Level 

Advancement 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

Honors/Advanced 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

International 

Baccalaureate 9,10, 11,12 

(IB) 

Running Start 11,12 

Subject-Based 

Acceleration 

Is Gifted Value 35 

applicable? 

6, 7,8, 3, 10, 11, 12 

No 

Powered by Smartsheet Forms 

© 2024 Smartsheet Inc. | Contact | Privacy Policy | User Agreement | Report Abuse/Spam 



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: April 23, 2025 

  

  

 

Topic Transportation Department – Annual Bus Purchase Plan  
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Each spring, transportation provides a department update and presents a bus surplus and 
purchase plan to the Board for approval. The presentation provides updated ridership and 
mileage data, information on current fleet and depreciation, information on past bus 
purchases, and information on low emission laws. In addition, the presentation includes 
information on the plan to upgrade routing software.  
 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
X Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• How does the future of low emission laws influence the recommendation? 
• Does the budget accommodate the purchase plan? 

 
 

Next Steps  • The Board votes to accept or reject the recommendation as presented. 
 



Transportation Department
Annual Bus Purchase Plan

April 23, 2025



Topic 
Overview



Transportation 
Department

• 128 Bus Drivers 

• 41 Bus Attendants

• 7 Mechanics & 1 Shop 
Foreman

• 4 Dispatchers/Routers

• 2 Transportation 
Secretaries

• Transportation 
Coordinator

• Assistant Director

• Director 



2023-2024 
Student Counts & Annual Mileage 

• Student counts submitted to OSPI last year:
• Fall      10,861
• Winter 10,664
• Spring 10,510

• Mileage report submitted was 1,293,144
• To/from school 1,175,294
• Field trip 51,167
• Extra curricular 37,757
• Summer school 28,926



Fleet Summary & Depreciation

• 138 Buses on our fleet as of today, which includes the 8 buses that were 
delivered for this 24-25 school year (9 buses arriving in August 2025 are 
not included)

• 117 buses currently on the depreciation schedule 

• 15.2% of our buses are off the depreciation schedule (21 buses)
• Most buses stay in service for 20 years

• We only purchase Type C and Type D category buses – 13 years for the 
State to completely reimburse the base cost of a bus without district 
options



Fleet 
Information

Manufactured Year Number of Buses

2004 1

2005 2

2006 3

2007 3

2008 0

2009 2

2010 4

2011 6

2012 5

2013 4

2014 8

2015 6

2016 10

2017 10

2018 10

2019 *20

2020 8

2021 9

2022 5

2023 7

2024 7

2025 8
*2019 additional buses purchased due accommodate the middle school 
walk zone reducing from two miles down to one mile



Air Conditioning
Priority:  Purchase enough buses with air conditioning to support our summer school programs

o Current fleet: 15 buses with air conditioning and 123 buses without air conditioning (24 
with Air Conditioning after we receiving our next order in August 2025)

o Target is 25 – 30 to support the summer school programs

With Air , 15

Without Air, 123

CURRENT FLEET



Routing Software
• Our current routing program is antiquated 

• The routing program was purchased 6 years ago
• The software uses dated GIS mapping that we purchased from Benton and Franklin 

counties.  The maps do not get updated unless we draw in the neighborhoods ourselves
• The routing program does not time the routes correctly, so we spend a lot of time 

manipulating the software to adjust the route times for accuracy 
• This software does not have a parent app available

• We are in the process of vetting two separate upgraded software programs
• The software programs we are looking at include live GPS and include a legal 

navigational tablet that is mounted on the bus for the drivers
• The software includes a parent app that will allow parents to securely see in real time 

where the bus is located
• The routing programs we are looking at will increase accuracy, efficiency and allow more 

“in the moment” adjustments 
• This will improve conditions for our drivers and also enhance the services we provide 

our students and parents



Electric Vehicle Mandate
• OSPI and Department of Ecology are working on creating a method to determine “Total 

cost of ownership” for electric and diesel buses.  Total cost will include the cost of the 
bus, infrastructure, charging stations and maintenance of the vehicle for 13 years
o When the total cost of owning an electric vehicle (EV) is determined to be the same 

or below the total cost of owning diesel buses, districts will be required to purchase 
electric buses under current laws  

• The price of electric buses are coming down 
o Electric bus with no options added is $547,532 through Bryson Bus Sales 
o Electric bus with no options added is $489,376 through Schetky NW 



Current Low Emission Laws 
• ACT Law – Advanced Clean Truck Law mandates vehicle manufacturers to sell a certain 

percentage of low-emission vehicles, essentially requiring them to produce and sell increasingly 
cleaner heavy-duty vehicles to comply with emission reduction goals.  Percentages are 10:1 and 
increase by 10% each year until they reach 100% low-emissions by the year 2036

• Omnibus Law is a single bill that combines multiple laws or policy proposals into one
• The carb regulation under this law targets diesel engines directly and currently requires manufacturers to 

meet a low carb emissions standard effective starting in 2026
• We are unable to purchase buses in Washington State with a 2026 engine manufactured date 
• Currently, no diesel engine manufacturer can meet the new low carb requirement by 2026
• Our industry is hearing the low emission laws will mostly likely be lifted sometime in May or June 2025

• Cummins Engine
• The manufacturer is currently in the testing phase of new diesel engines that will meet the new low 

emissions standard.  Cummins is planning to have engines available for purchase in 2026 for a 2027 
delivery date



Bus Bids 

We requested bus bids in February 2025 and within three weeks our quotes were no longer valid
  

• The cost for buses are increasing due to inflation and new material costs for materials made outside 
of the United States.  

• There was a 25% increase implemented on all steel imports beginning March 12, 2025, increasing 
the cost of new buses.

• Currently Schetky NW is not accepting orders for diesel buses for delivery in 2026 due to the build 
time and the 2026 low emissions standard.  



Bus Purchase Financial Plan 

Recommendation:  
Wait to see if the low emissions laws are lifted:
• If laws are lifted, we would request to purchase buses off this year’s state contract to be 

delivered in August 2026. We could present a proposal to the board later this school year for 
consideration if the laws are lifted.  

• If laws are not lifted, we recommend waiting to order new buses until Cummins can meet the 
low emission standard in 2027.

If we order buses this year, the funding would be charged to the 2025/2026 budget:
• Transportation ending cash on August 31, 2025, is projected at $275,000 

• In August 2026, the district expects to receive $1,450,000 from the state for bus replacement 
for a total of $1,725,000 to apply toward the purchase of the new buses  

• The impact to our TVF is minimal if we do not order buses this year.  We will still receive our 
apportionment payment for the 117 buses that are currently on the depreciation schedule  



Board 
Questions 

and 
Discussion



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 26, 2025 

 

 

 

Topic 2025-26 General Fund Preliminary Budget  
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Preliminary General Fund budget information is part of cycle of annual budget 
updates/presentations for the Board. The goal of the presentation is to inform the Board 
of the preliminary status of the 2025-26 General Fund budget.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

 System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there concerns or questions regarding the 2025-26 preliminary General Fund 
budget? 

 

Next Steps  • The Board will receive budget presentations throughout the months of March, April, 
and May. The Board will hold a public hearing and vote to formally adopt the budget 
on June 18, 2025. 
 



2025-26
Preliminary General Fund Budget

April 23, 2025



Topic 
Overview 

2



Presentation Outline 

• 2024-25 Budget (Updates) 
• 2025-26 Anticipated Revenue and Expenditure 

Changes (Updates) 
• 2025-26 Budget Process and Timeline



• April 27, 2025 - End Date for Legislative Session

• Potential Funding/Budget Impacts
o Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) - estimating 2.6%
o Employer paid benefit rate changes

 Retirement rate – employer share 
 Medical insurance per state-funded staff - expected increase from 

$14,136 per year to ?????
o Materials, Supplies, and Operating Costs (MSOC) 
o Special education multiplier changes 

• OSPI funding models will be adjusted after session ends
• District can project but not finalize revenue and wage/benefit cost until 

OSPI funding models are updated

4

Legislative Session



5



6

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Revenue Changes
School Year 2025-26

Revenue Source (Basic Ed/Local Funded) Increases
Projected
Change

March 12

Projected
Change
April 23

Basic Ed Enrollment (FTE)  - trending expected decrease for 2025-26 SY vs 2024-25 
actual $(300,000) $(300,000) 

Amounts to be 
updated when 

legislative 
session 

information is 
finalized.

Special Education Enrollment - decrease for 2024-25 SY (60 less) vs budget- still 
determining trends for 2025-26 SY- assume decrease ?? No Update

Special Education Formula Adjustments – legislature to finalize - expect multiplier 
increase/funding cap increase ?? No Update

Transportation Funding - legislature to finalize funding formula changes ?? No Update

Inflationary Formula Allocation Adjustment – legislature to finalize funding formula 
changes ?? No Update

Employer Benefit Allocation & Health Insurance Allocation - $14,136 to ???per year 
health insurance

?? No Update

Retirement rate decrease/employer contribution decreases ?? No Update

Materials, Supplies & Operating Cost (MSOC) - legislature to finalize funding formula 
changes

?? No Update

LEA Calculation Formula Changes ?? No Update

EP&O Levy -2025-$23.85M  (Spring 53% received /Fall 47% received) 2026-$24.7M $300,000 $300,000

Levy Equalization Based on AV/Enrollment 2024-25 to 2025-26 $14.2M Actual to 
Projected (as of today) $13.5M due to projected AV growth (assuming 5%) $(900,000) $(900,000)

Other revenue changes - No Update

Total Preliminary Revenue Change ????? ????



7

Basic Ed/Local Funded Staffing Costs
Projected 
Change 

March 12

Projected 
Change 
April 23

2024-25 Added Staff/ Cost vs 2024-25 Budget……..currently trending at Budget ?? No Change 

Working on 
staffing and 

awaiting 
legislative 
session 

information 
to update 
amounts.

Elementary Cert Staff – expect to reduce 4.0 positions via attrition ($381,000) ($508,000)

Middle School/High School Teaching Staff  - expect to reduce 0.8 position (Title 
Funded) via attrition 

($63,000) ($100,000)

Alternative Program Staffing ?? No Change 

Special Education Certificated & Paraeducator Staff ?? No Change 

Other Support/Operations/Maintenance Staffing  -expect add .5 FTE split 
Lampson/Grounds

?? ($30,000)

Projected Increase in Staff Costs/Inflationary Adjustments/Employer Benefits ?? ??

Certificated/Classified Pools  $19M-$20M (Overload/Subs/Coaches/Extra Pay/Leave 
Cash Outs, Etc.) $457,000 $952K

Re-allocate Staff Costs (To)/From Other Program Funding Sources ?? ??

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Funded Staff-Related Cost Change ???? ????

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Fund Non – Staff Related Cost Change ?? ??

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Funded Total Cost Change ???? ????

Change In Revenue vs Expenditure    ???? ????

2024-25 Budget Revenue vs Expenditure ($948,177)

2025-26 Budget Revenue vs Expenditure: Estimate ($????) ???? ????

2025-26 Preliminary Staff/Non-Staff Cost Changes



General Fund:  Materials/Supply/Operating Costs (MSOC) 
as of 4/23/25

8

Materials/Supplies/Operating Costs (MSOC) 
Select Categories

20/21 
Budget

 21/22 
Budget

22/23 
Budget

23/24   
Budget

24/25 
Budget  

25/26 Prelim 
Budget

Budget 
Change 25-26 -

24-25
Utility Cost   $    3,641,500  $    3,642,500  $    3,748,250  $     4,024,500  $    4,127,000  $          4,333,350  $             206,350 

Property/Liability Insurance  2,280,000 2,755,000 3,071,900 3,276,500 4,167,600  $          4,501,008  $             333,408 

Transportation/Fleet Fuel 885,000 885,000 900,000 1,220,000 1,220,000  $        (1,220,000)

Transportation 491,300 156,430 146,430 146,430 204,130  $           (204,130)

Curriculum Adoption/License Renewals 1,032,500 1,122,500            122,500            355,000            940,000  $          1,401,049  $             461,049 

IT/Technology/Software 3,109,000 3,109,000 3,189,000 3,189,000 3,389,000  $        (3,389,000)

Maint/Fleet/Custodial/Grounds/Warehouse/Print Shop 3,592,850 3,454,850 3,122,850 3,149,350 3,212,350  $          3,308,721  $               96,371 

Maint/Grounds (Equipment & Fleet Replacement) 221,500 221,500 196,500 196,500 196,500  $             202,395  $                  5,895 

Special Education  1,309,976 1,309,976 1,130,476 1,915,476 2,271,976  $        (2,271,976)

Security Resource Officer Contract 400,000 400,000 415,000 710,000 735,000  $           (735,000)

Education Service District (ESD) Prevention Services 175,000 175,000 175,000 185,000 210,000  $           (210,000)

Reading Foundation $276K/Team Read $124K 379,575 379,575 379,575 395,000 400,000  $             408,000  $                  8,000 

Testing/Assessment Contract 185,000 185,000              70,000            185,000            185,000  $             185,000  $                         -   

Building Budgets 2,502,875 2,456,242 2,266,922 2,300,132 2,288,400  $        (2,288,400)

Other MSOC/No Tri Tech/No CTE (01,02,97) 2,104,741 2,485,920 2,110,443 2,203,205 2,389,455  $        (2,389,455)

Delta/Running Start/CBC Academy-Offset With Revenue 0 0 0  $                         -   

Open Doors- Offset With Revenue                       -                         -                          -    $                         -   

Subtotal Basic Ed/Local Funded MSOC Budget Change  $ 22,310,817  $  22,738,493  $  21,044,846  $  23,451,093  $  25,936,411  $        14,339,523  $      (11,596,889)
Delta/Running Start/CBC Academy-Offset With Revenue        3,610,000        3,585,000         3,360,000         3,718,864         4,832,000  $        (4,832,000)

Open Doors- Offset With Revenue  $       375,000  $       365,000  $        390,500  $        416,000  $        760,000  $           (760,000)

Science Resource Center (Offset With Revenue) 897,500 187,500 222,500 242,500 247,500 252,450  $                  4,950 

Learning Assistance Program - Other Student Support           385,000            511,830            627,000            660,000            600,000                  560,000  $              (40,000)

Career & Technical Education (CTE) 1,086,834 967,886 1,602,886 1,389,886 1,305,211  $        (1,305,211)

Tri Tech Skill Center 1,423,228 1,668,228 1,853,228         1,995,728         1,820,728  $        (1,820,728)

Federal Programs 1,077,746 2,538,310 1,234,234         1,294,074         1,146,677  $        (1,146,677)

Learning Assistance Program (LAP) 282,377 715,470 632,281            663,531            701,700  $           (701,700)

Bilingual 266,000 162,500 164,500            164,500            192,642  $           (192,642)

Early Childhood Educ. Assistance Program (ECEAP) 274,500 277,000 277,000            316,815            280,510  $           (280,510)

Food Service Program 5,480,903 4,708,343 5,672,373         6,435,995         6,923,999  $        (6,923,999)

Other Grants/Contingency 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000         1,500,000         2,500,000              2,500,000  $                         -   

Other Non-Local Funded Program Change   950,322 725,470 709,169            660,169            623,702  $           (623,702)

 Subtotal  $ 17,609,410  $  17,912,537  $  18,245,671  $  19,458,062  $  21,934,669  $          3,312,450  $      (18,622,219)

Total  Materials/Supplies/Operating Cost (MSOC) Change  $ 39,920,227  $  40,651,030  $  39,290,517  $  42,909,155  $  47,871,080  $        17,651,973  $      (30,219,108)



• April 27, 2025
• End date for Legislative Session

• March – May 
• Budget Presentations 

o General Fund
o Capital Fund
o Debt Service Fund
o ASB Fund
o Transportation Fund
o Self- Insured Programs

• June 18, 2025
• Public Hearing & Adoption of District Budget

• On or before July 10, 2025
• Must submit F195 to ESD for review

9

2025-26 Budget Process and Timeline



Board Questions and 
Discussion



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 26, 2025 

 

  

Topic Recommendation: K-12 Online Learning Instructional Materials Adoption   
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

One of the 2024-2025 annual objectives tied to our goal, “All students are engaged 
learners” is to conduct curriculum review, instructional materials assessment, and 
adoption of K-12 online learning instructional materials. A recommendation to adopt 
Accelerate Education for K-12 online learning will be presented.  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

 Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
X Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role  X Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Were all vetting and review process as specified in policy and procedure 2310/2310 R 
appropriately followed? 

Next Steps  • N/A 
 



K-12 Online Learning Instructional 
Materials Recommendation

April 23, 2025



Topic 
Overview



Presentation Outline
• Instructional material adoption cycle
• Evaluation and selection process
• Background, committee process and 

timeline
• Selection criteria 
• Committee recommendation 
• Pilot results

o Evidence of impact
o Feedback from participants

• Evidence of Impact
• Projected Costs
• Recommendation





KSD Instructional Material 
Adoption Cycle



Background: Online Learning 

•

Prior to 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 to 2024-2025 
• Courses available at all 

high school locations for 
20+ years

• Available for small groups 
of high school students at 
Legacy’s Online Learning 
Academy (LOLA)

• Past curriculum: NovaNET

• Current curriculum: APEX 
(since 2011)

• Courses taken primarily for 
credit retrieval

• Started K-12 Online Learning 
Academy with district level 
oversight

• Continued high school credit 
retrieval courses at all high 
schools and LOLA courses 
using APEX

• Evolved K-12 Online Academy 
and LOLA to: 
o MCP Online for grades K-8
o Endeavor High School for 

grades 9-12            

• MCP Online began using FlexPoint 
curriculum

• Pheonix uses APEX for math instruction

• Endeavor continued with APEX 
curriculum 

• Continued high school credit retrieval 
courses at all high schools



Committee Members

• Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
• Executive Director of Technology
• Principals/Assistant Principals
• Endeavor High School Teachers
• Mid Columbia Online Teachers
• Credit Retrieval Teachers
• District Directors and Specialists: 

o Secondary Education
o Technology
o English Language Development
o Special Education



Process and Timeline
2023/2024 School Year 2024/2025 School Year

Fall 2023 Committee identified shared 
interests for online programs.

Fall 2024 Programs presented to 
committee and evaluated 
based on rubric criteria

Winter 
2023/2024

Committee reviewed national 
standards for online programs, 
courses and teaching and 
created rubric to review 
programs.

Winter 2024/2025 3rd Quarter Pilot and 
Feedback from teachers, 
students and families

Spring 
2024

Committee Reviewed seven 
OSPI approved programs and 
narrowed down to four they 
would like to learn more about. 

Spring 2025 Community meetings and 
previews  



Selection Criteria

• Aligned with Washington State Standards

• Engaging and updated content

• Suitable for grades K-12

• Age and Level Appropriate Format and 
Content   

• Able to integrate with Schoology and 
PowerSchool

• Adaptable for teachers and students 



Committee Recommendation

• K-12 Program
• Personalized Learning
• Credit Recovery
• Classroom Tools 







Elementary and Middle School Course of Study

Grades K-5 Grades 6-8

Language Arts
Math

Science
Social Studies
Health and PE

Art
Music

Technology

Language Arts
Math

Science
Social Students
Health and PE

Electives



High School Course Catalog

Math ELA Science Social 
Studies

Health & 
PE

Career Electives Art & Music Other

Pre-Algebra

Algebra

Geometry

Financial 
Literacy

Pre-Calculus

Integrated 
Math Options

9th Grade

10th Grade

11th Grade

12th Grade

Creative 
Writing

Speech

Contemporary 
Novels

Biology

Chemistry

Earth  

Physical 
Science

Renewable 
Energy

Space 
Exploration

Anatomy & 
Physiology

Government

American 
History

Civics

Economics

World 
Geography

World History

Health

Physical 
Education

Accounting

Web Design

Business Law

Career Planning

Computer Basics

Digital Media

Graphic Design

Intro to Business

Journalism
Media and 
Communication

Art Appreciation

Art History

Advanced Drawing

Beginning Painting

Beginning Piano

Music Appreciation

Theater Students

World Language

Honors

Advanced 
Placement



Pilot: Teacher Feedback

• Elementary pilot teachers are excited about print materials being 
available for students

• More robust materials, students have to show their learning and 
explain their learning

• Customization options within courses
• Students were engaged in the coursework and liked it
• Updated content



Pilot: Student Feedback
MCP 2nd grader: “It was easier to have my workbook ready than to figure out printing sometimes.”

SRHS Students: 

“Helped me stay organized and understand math. Made me eager to come to class, take tests and get good 
scores."

“I really liked having it in Schoology it made it really easy to find all my notes and quizzes in the order in 
which they need to be done. I like how its all on the same program as my normal classes, so its all in one 
spot.” 

Endeavor Students: 
“This program I would say is more engaging and understandable compared to others. There are fewer 
pages, but things are still broken down and made easy to learn. For example, almost every lesson contains a 
short video teaching you the material.”

“I feel like I learned more because the assignments did go with the lessons whereas in Apex, the lesson 
didn't really fit with the assignment. I liked turning them in when it was a document inside Schoology it makes 
it easier than having to do other stuff to add it and turn it in.”

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Pilot: Parent Feedback

“We actually like this program much better than the previous language arts program on FlexPoint. 
I feel like this is more involved in helping the kids learn to spell and distinguish grammar and 
vocabulary. The writing assignments are much more manageable.”

“This program seemed to be more in depth than the previous program.”

“No frustrations. The accelerated program seemed to require more time to complete, but the 
educational results of that time has been successful.”

“By adding writing assignments like journal entries, poems, and letters, we have cut down on the 
meltdowns involving writing. I also feel like he’s learning more about spelling content and 
vocabulary compared to the old system.”

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Pilot: Evidence of Impact

Course

1st Semester 
grade 
average 
(APEX)

3rd quarter 
grade 
average 
(Accelerate)

Algebra 3 57% 76%
Algebra 4 47% 84%

Grade
Level

Winter Star %
(FlexPoint)

Progress 
Monitor %
(Accelerate)

2 71% 64%
2 81% 76%
2 77% 90%
2 89% 82%
2 16% 9%
3 63% 36%
3 65% 93%
3 96% 97%



Pilot: Evidence of Impact

REVIEWS OF WASHINGTON 
DISTRICTS USING ACCELERATE

Additional Fact Gathering From:

• Clarkston School District
• Issaquah School District
• Ridgefield School District



DISTRICT CASE 
STUDIES





Projected Costs

Annual payment plan

10% discount for 3-year contract

About $300 per student

About $35 per credit retrieval course



Instructional Materials Committee

April 17, 2025 
Review and Unanimous Recommendation



Recommendation

The Board approves Accelerate 
Learning as the core 
instructional materials for K-12 
Online Learning.



Board Discussion and Decision 



Program 
Design
Grades K-5
Our K-5 courses were built with the 21st-century student in mind. Courses integrate
online and offline activities to support multiple learning styles and to ensure that
students are able to show mastery of concepts down to the objective level. 

All K-5 Courses include a Resource Module
which includes the following:

Information For The Learning Coach 

Teacher Resources including Assessments,
Answer Keys, & Rubrics

Materials Needed For The Course 

A Getting Started Section For The Student 

Synchronous Presentations For
Small Group or Individual Instruction

Benchmark Assessments



Accelerate Education's K-3 English Language Arts curriculum has been
carefully designed to meet standards.  The five components of reading -
Phonemic Awareness, Phonics, Vocabulary, Reading Comprehension, and
Fluency - are incorporated into each lesson of each course.

English Language Arts
Key Features of
our lessons
include:

Interactives

Videos

Workbooks

Embedded interactives allow students
to interact with newly learned concepts
and receive immediate feedback.

Videos are used to support the
understanding of new concepts
throughout the course

Workbooks are included as another
method of practicing each concept
throughout the year

The theoretical model that grounds Accelerate Education's Language Arts instruction is Gough &
Tummer's (1986) Simple View of Reading.  The Simple View of Reading was later incorporated into
Scarboroguh's Reading Rope, created by Dr. Hollis Scarborough in 2001.



Elementary Math,
Science & Social Studies 

Accelerate Education's elementary courses grab students' attention and interest by inviting them into the world of hands-on 
actvities, videos, projects, and experiments. 

Accelerate Education’s Instructional units are organized by Core subject areas and subsequently by course
within the subject area. Developing instructional units begins with creating a curriculum map, where the
standards for each subject area are unpacked. Using subject-matter experts, objectives are written
according to the standards and grouped into course modules. A basic outline of authentic assignments and
activities is determined based on the objectives. Finally, objective assessments are written, and the
instructional unit is designed.

The course content of Science and Mathematics is presented sequentially, with skills building on knowledge
learned in prior units. English Language Arts and Social Studies courses typically use a theme for each
instructional unit to introduce new skills.

https://learningcoach.accelerate.education/knowledgebase/math-k-3/


Elementary Electives 
Accelerate Education's elementary electives include Art & Music, Health & PE, and Technology.  

Art & Music
Accelerate Education's Art and Music
curriculum provides and opportunity for
children to develop the use of their
senses directly.

Art Level 1 

Art Level 2 

Art Level 3 

Art Level 4

Kindergarten Arts & Crafts 

1st Grade Arts & Crafts 

2nd Grade Arts & Crafts 

Music- Recorders Level 1

Health & Physical Education
Accelerate Education's Health and PE 
curriculum helps young learners 
establish a basic understanding of health 
and fitness.

Health K-1 A & B 

Health 2-3 A & B 

Health 4-5 A & B

Physical Education K-1 A & B 

Physical Education 2-3 A & B 

Physical Education 4-5 A & B

Technology
Accelerate Education's introductory 
technology courses help students with 
basic skills needed to be successful in 
future technology courses.

Keyboarding

Scratch Coding

https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae_elemartlevel1/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae_elemartlevel2/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae_elemartlevel3/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae_elemartlevel4/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae-gradekartsandcrafts/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae-grade1artsandcrafts/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/art/ae-grade2artsandcrafts/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/music/ae-elemmusic-level1/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/health/c-k-1health/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/health/c_2-3health/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/health/c_4-5health/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/physical-education/c-k-1physicaleducation/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/physical-education/c_2-3physicaleducation/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/physical-education/c_4-5physicaleducation/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/keyboarding/
https://accelerate.education/catalogk_5/scratch-coding/


Accelerate Education strives to develop lesson content
with different asset types to provide a variety for
students and keep them engaged.  Additionally,
interactive self-checks confirm understanding of new
skills before formal assessments which are integral to
the design approach. 

Grades 6-12

Accelerate Education's 6-12 courses are designed to engage
students with different learning styles and abilities, utilizing
rich, interactive learning assets that provide both visual and
auditory stimulation. Using cutting-edge technology, the
courses offer rich, rigorous, in-depth standards-aligned
multimedia lessons.

1-2 Videos
Per Lesson 

Interactive
Self Checks 

1 Per Skill in
Each Lesson

Formative Quiz Per Module
Summative Assessment Per
Module
Summative Per Semester Course
Discussion Per Module

Teacher-Grades Assignments Per
Module

Lesson Design Approach

A
ss

es
sm

en
t.

...



Guided and Independent Practice Activities
Students will encounter many chances to practice and receive immediate
feedback on their progress through a variety of guided and independent
practice activities.  Practice activities may include:

Interactive multiple-choice questions
with immediate feedback and hints

Graphic Organizers to
review and organize
thoughts

Drag-and-drop diagrams, lists, charts, and
illustrations



Honors courses are foundationally built on the same standards and concepts as our standard
courses.  Honors courses have students complete additional assignments that build focus on
higher-level critical thinking and activities. These assignments make the students go above and
beyond the curriculum content in creativity and application.  

Credit Recovery are independent study courses that are designed to serve students who need
independent, self-paced, standards-based courses. These courses offer an option that removes all
teacher-graded assessments and discussion board activities, with the exception to ELA which still
contains some teacher-graded items, to shorten a course without permitting students to skip any
key concepts. Independent Study courses may be a particularly good option for summer school
as courses are 20-30 hours shorter in duration than Original Credit courses and they do require
students to cover all content within the course. 

High School  
Course Levels

Designed for students that are on grade level.  Students are engaged in a variety of activities and
assessments (including authentic assessments) appropriate to the field of study, such as labs,
journals, written assignments, discussion activities, group and individual projects, formative
assessments, objective tests, and written exams.

Advanced placement courses allow students to take special high school courses that can earn them
college credit and/or qualify them for more advanced classes when they begin college. AP courses
are taught at the college level and designed to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement
Examination and score high enough to earn college credit in colleges that recognize the
examination. Accelerate Education Advanced Placement courses are approved by the College
Board.

Adaptive courses begin with adaptive pre-assessments. Students begin with a module assessment
to first determine what they already know. If a student shows mastery of any strand, they are
excused from that lesson.

Standard

Honors

Advanced Placement

Adaptive

Credit Recovery



Initial domain configuration
Administrator training (90 min webinar)
& implementation support
Individual administrator support
sessions as needed
Basic teacher training (120 min webinar)
Advanced course modification & student
accommodation training (60-90 min
webinar)
Post-training group Q&A sessions as
needed
Ongoing webinar series for
administrators & teachers
On-demand training resources & digital
training materials 

Year 1 Implementation & PD       

Implementation  
& Support
Accelerate Education understands that for
true understanding training should not be
considered one and done. To establish
ongoing training opportunities and support
Accelerate Education has established the
following training subscriptions:

Comprehensive
Implementation

Planning

Monitoring &
Support

Product &
Leadership

Training



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: April 23, 2025 

 

  

Topic(s) Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy Instructional Materials 
Artificial Intelligence (AI) Guidance  
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
X 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

A 2024-2025 objective aligned with our goal, “All students are engaged learners” is to 
conduct curriculum review of educational technology standards and instructional 
materials for digital citizenship and media literacy. In addition, an objective aligned with 
our goal, “All students are ready for their future” is to develop guidance for use of Artificial 
Intelligence in classrooms.  Recommendations and updates aligned with these objectives 
will be presented.  
  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

 Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
X Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role  X Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Does the Board accept the recommendation for renewal of instructional materials? 
• Does the Board have questions related to communication, training, and 

implementation?   

Next Steps  • N/A 
 



Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy 
Instructional Materials 

April 23, 2025



Topic 
Overview

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Presentation Outline
Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy

• Policies and procedures
• Annual review and acknowledgement 

requirement
• Essential standards review 
• Instructional materials review and 

recommendation

Artificial Intelligence Guidance 
• Policies and procedures
• Staff and student guidance 
• Communication, Implementation, and 

Training 



New Policy: Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy 

Adopted: November 13, 2024



Updated Acceptable Use Policy (AUP)



Annual Review and Acknowledgement 

Staff Students

Annual Vector Training Annual Review and signature in PowerSchool 
Student Portal (for example: Elem. Technology, 

MS Library, Homeroom)



K-12 Digital Literacy and Media Literacy Standards   

Courses by Level/Where Standards are Addressed 
Courses of Study and Subject Areas

Elementary School Middle School High School 
• Technology Special
• Library Special

• Computers
• Library
• English Language Arts
Critical Analysis of sources and viewpoints
• Health 
Online Safety/Healthy Relationships

• Computer Applications
• Computer Science 1-2
• Intro to Marketing
• Multimedia
• Social Media Marketing
• Sports & entertainment 

Marketing
• Web Design 1-2
• English Language Arts
Critical Analysis of sources and viewpoints
• Health 
Online Safety/Healthy Relationships



Digital Citizenship
WA Ed Tech Standard 2

(Digital Citizen)

Productivity/Applications
WA Ed Tech Standard 1

(Empowered Learner)

Computer Science/Coding
WA Ed Tech Standards 1 and 5

(Empowered Learner and 
Computational Thinker)

K Media Balance Keyboard Skills Mouse Skills

1 Online Safety (Recognizing Feelings 
When I’m Online) Keyboard Skills Parts of the Computer

2 Information Privacy (What is Private 
Information?) Logging In Coding - Sequence

3 Information Privacy - Strong Passwords Word Processing
Coding - Efficient/Loops

4 Safe, legal, ethical behavior 
(cyberbullying) Word Processing Coding - Debug

5 Digital Footprints Slideshow Presentations Coding - Program Creation

K-12 Digital Literacy and Media Literacy Standards 



K-12 Digital Literacy and Media Literacy Standards 
Middle School 

Library
Digital Citizenship

WA Ed Tech Standard 2
(Digital Citizen)

6

Digital Footprint
Protecting information online
Cyber Bullying
Don’t talk to strangers
Think before you post, should you post it?
Social Media and the teenage brain

7
Protecting yourself online
Cyberbullying
Social Media and the teenage brain
Bystander/upstander

8

Protecting yourself online
Stranger Danger Online
How to protect yourself from inappropriate behavior
Think before you post, should you post it?
Keep your private information private
Social Media and the teenage brain  



Middle School Computer Exploratory
Developed from the Middle School Educational Technology Standards

Empowered 
Learner

• Set personal learning goals, choose and use tech to meet them, and reflect on progress.
• Seek feedback from teachers and digital tools to improve learning.
• Use and adapt to various technologies as needed.

Digital 
Citizen

• Manage your digital identity and understand online actions are permanent.
• Practice and promote safe, legal, and ethical tech use.
• Respect intellectual property by using proper citations in media projects.
• Understand personal data privacy and how to protect it.

Knowledge 
Constructor

• Use effective strategies to find digital resources.
• Evaluate sources for accuracy, credibility, and relevance.
• Organize resources for different projects and purposes.
• Investigate real-world issues and explore possible solutions.

Innovative 
Designer & 
Computation
al Thinker

• Use design thinking to create solutions or products.
• Choose digital tools to support design and consider trade-offs.
• Break problems into parts and use those to problem-solve.

Creative 
Communicat
or

• Choose the right tools and platforms to share ideas effectively.
• Communicate complex concepts using text, visuals, and graphics.
• Tailor content and tools to fit the audience.

Global 
Collaborator

• Use digital tools to understand diverse perspectives and cultures.
• Collaborate with others (peers, experts, community) to explore issues and learn 

together.



Instructional Materials: Digital and Media Literacy 

Previously reviewed in 2012

Began being used during COVID but 
never completed adoption review process

NetSmartz

Code.org

Integrated into Career and Technical 
Frameworks (CTE) and aligned to 
CTE guidelines.

K-5 Technology and K-8 Librarians Middle School Computer Exploratory



Current/Recommended Instructional Materials 



Elementary Topics
Kindergarten: I know when and why to take breaks from device 
time.

Grade 1: I can pay attention to my feelings when I'm using a 
device, and I know what to do when I'm having a bad feeling.

Grade 2: I know that I should not give out private information 
online.

Grade 3: I know why having a strong password is import and 
how to create a strong password.

Grade 4: I know what cyberbullying is and strategies for dealing 
with it.

Grade 5: I know what my digital footprint is and how I am (and 
am not) in control of it.



Middle School 
Topics Digital footprint

Cyberbullying

Social Media Safety 

Protecting Yourself Online

Critical Thinking

Evaluating Online Sources



Available K-12 
Common Sense Media aims to equips kids with 
critical skills to navigate online challenges like 
cyberbullying, privacy, and media balance.

Key Topics:
• Media Balance & Well-Being: Finding a healthy tech-

life balance.
• Privacy & Security: Protecting personal info and 

understanding data rights.
• Digital Footprint & Identity: Managing online presence 

and reputation.
• Relationships & Communication: Building positive 

online interactions.
• Cyberbullying & Digital Drama: Preventing and 

addressing online conflicts.
• News & Media Literacy: Spotting credible info and 

avoiding misinformation.



Be Internet Awesome (Grades K-6)



Family Guides, Letters, and Activities

• Available in multiple languages

• Options for different grades and ages

https://www.commonsense.org/education/family-resources 

https://www.commonsense.org/education/family-resources


Examples and how 
Be Internet Awesome 

looks in class





Instructional Materials Committee

April 17, 2025 

Review and Unanimous Recommendation

•  Common Sense Media
•  Be internet Awesome



Recommendation

• The Board approves renewal 
of Common-Sense Media for 
K-12

• The Board approves 
adoption of Be Internet 
Awesome for K-6



Artificial Intelligence (AI) Guidance 



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Presentation Outline

Artificial Intelligence Guidance 
• Policies and procedures
• Staff and student guidance 
• Communication, Implementation, and 

Training 



Updated Procedure: Electronic Information System, 
Electronic Resources, and Internet Safety

Updated February 11, 2025



Feedback: 
35 Staff Members
8 Community Members
Student Advisory Committee

Main Topics of Conversation:
• Staff use and training opportunities
• Academic integrity
• When and how will students be learning to 

use AI tools
• Feedback on KSD vision for AI use

Community Engagement 



Overview: Artificial Intelligence Use in KSD

• KSD staff and students can use the power of AI to improve learning outcomes, and ensure all students are ready 
for a future where AI plays an integral role in all fields. Empowered teachers can harness the potential of AI, 
ensuring that our students are well-prepared for the future. This commitment reflects our belief in the 
transformative power of AI to enrich the educational experience and support academic success.

• In the field of education, Artificial Intelligence (AI) presents opportunities to enhance teaching and learning 
processes and foster personalized education. The usage of AI in educational settings requires careful 
consideration of ethical, legal, and practical aspects to ensure it serves the best interests of students and staff. 

• The Kennewick School District is committed to supporting AI use in alignment with the district's mission and 
goals. 

• The district will offer professional development opportunities that focus on the ethical use of AI, enhancing 
classroom instruction, and fostering student engagement. 

KSD Policy 2313 2313 Electronic Information System, Electronic Resources, and Internet Safety 
KSD Policy 2315 Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy 

https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1737758006/ksdorg/ufwa0ybnrlvcgyvotcct/2313ElectronicInformationSystemElectronicResourcesandInternetSafety.pdf
https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1731714631/ksdorg/mdj285s2q7p91nutai4l/2315DigitalCitizenshipandMediaLiteracy.pdf


Staff Guidance



Student Handbook Updates



Staff Trainings and Resouces



Next Steps for 2025-2026

Communication and Training 

• Staff, Parent, and Student Communication
• Training and Professional Development 



Board Questions and Discussion


	Agenda School Board Meeting 04 23 25
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 04 09 25
	Personnel Actions - Certificated
	Personnel Actions - Classified
	Personnel Actions - Extracurricular
	Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans
	Budget Status Report Ending March 31, 2025
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending March 31, 2025
	2025-26 Athletic User Fees
	2025-26 Middle School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices
	2025-26 High School ASB Fees and Yearbook Prices
	2025-26 High School Athletic Admission Prices
	Recommendation Instructional Material
	Multilingual Education Program
	Highly Capable Program Plan

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Transportation: Annual bus Purchase Plan
	2025-26 General Fund Preliminary Budget

	NEW BUSINESS
	K-12 Online Learning Materials
	Digital Citizenship and Media Literacy Instructional Materials
	Artificial Intelligence (AI) Guidance





